IMPORTANT NOTICE: The stop-loss insurance policy in this PDF (the "Policy") has been validly issued by Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company in the state identified in the Coverage Information section of the Policy (the "Policy Issuance State") and shall be governed by its laws. For your convenience, the Policy is hereby transmitted electronically to you, as representative of the policyholder, in lieu of physical delivery of a paper copy of the Policy in the Policy Issuance State. Your receipt of this electronic transmission constitutes official delivery of the Policy in the Policy Issuance State no less than if a paper copy of the Policy were physically delivered at a policyholder address in the Policy Issuance State. If you prefer, a paper copy of the Policy will be delivered to a policyholder address that you identify in the Policy Issuance State.

Stop Loss Policy

Based on the application for this policy made by Hellebusch Tool & Die, Inc. (herein called the Policyholder) and based on the payment of the premium when due, Cigna agrees to reimburse the Policyholder for Covered Expenses under the terms of this policy.

This policy becomes effective at 12:01 a.m. at the Policyholder's address on the Effective Date shown in the Coverage Information section.

All matter printed or written by Cigna on the following pages forms a part of this policy as if recited over the signatures below.

This policy is delivered in and is governed by the laws of the jurisdiction shown in the Coverage Information section.

This policy is not covered by the Missouri Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association. If the company providing this policy is unable to meet its obligation by reason of insolvency or financial impairment, the fund(s) of the Missouri Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association will not be available to protect the Policyholder or his/her beneficiaries, payees or assignees.

In witness thereof, Cigna has caused this policy to be executed at its home office in Bloomfield, Connecticut.

Edward P. Potanka, Assistant Secretary

Elund Q. Fotal

Table of Contents

DEFINITIONS	4
BENEFIT PROVISIONS	8
INDIVIDUAL STOP LOSS COVERAGE	8
AGGREGATE STOP LOSS COVERAGE	8
POLICYHOLDER DUTIES	10
EXCLUSIONS	12
OMISSION, CONCEALMENT OR MISREPRESENTATION OF FACT	13
SUBROGATION AND ACTS OF THIRD PARTIES	13
PRIVACY OF INFORMATION	14
PREMIUMS	15
RIGHT TO CHANGE TERMS OF COVERAGE	16
TERMI NATION	17
GENERAL PROVISIONS	19
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE	22

Definitions

Actual Claim Payment

Actual Claim Payment means a payment made on behalf of the Policyholder for a Covered Person under the terms of the Benefit Plan. A payment is deemed to have been made as of the date the payment instrument is issued by the Claim Administrator. An Actual Claim Payment does not include a claim payment made in error on behalf of a Covered Person.

Aggregate Stop Loss Limit

Aggregate Stop Loss Limit means the dollar amount of Covered Expenses paid by the Policyholder for each Covered Person during each Policy Year, as set forth in the Schedule of Insurance. If coverage is terminated during any Policy Year, the Aggregate Stop Loss Limit will be the same as if the coverage had remained in effect for the entire Policy Year.

Aggregate Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable

Aggregate Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable means the percentage of Covered Expenses payable to the Policyholder once the Actual Attachment Point has been reached.

Become Due

Become Due is the earliest date upon which: (a) the Policyholder or the Claim Administrator has received due proof of loss for which a claim is made under the terms of the Benefit Plan, provided such loss is covered under this policy as a Covered Expense; and (b) an Actual Claim Payment has been made.

Benefit Plan or Plan

Benefit Plan or Plan means the Policyholder's medical benefits and/or other health benefits applicable to either the individual stop loss benefit and/or the aggregate stop loss benefit as uniquely specified for each benefit in the Schedule of Insurance.

Cigna's Maximum Liability

Cigna's Maximum Liability is the largest amount that Cigna will be responsible for according to the terms of the policy.

Claim Administrator

Claim Administrator means Cigna or another entity that provides administrative services and pays claims for the Policyholder's Benefit Plan.

Corridor Factor

Corridor Factor means the risk retained by the Policyholder on aggregate stop loss coverage. It is expressed as a percentage of Expected Paid Claims and is specified on the Schedule of Insurance.

Covered Expenses

Covered Expenses for a Policy Year are expenses made under the Benefit Plan that are reimbursable under this policy based on the criteria specified in the Schedule of Insurance.

Covered Person

Covered Person means a person who is enrolled for coverage and meets the eligibility requirements set forth in the Benefit Plan.

Cumulative Actual Expense

Cumulative Actual Expense is the total of Covered Expenses that have Become Due during the Policy Year to date. In determining which Covered Expenses are included in this calculation, Covered Expenses paid in excess of the aggregate stop loss limit will be excluded.

Cumulative Attachment Limit

For each Policy Month in the Policy Year that has elapsed since the start of the Policy Year, the Cumulative Attachment Limit is the greater of: (1) the sum for each elapsed Policy Month of the sum of the number of Covered Persons enrolled during the Lagged Month in each product and plan design in the Benefit Plan multiplied by the Monthly Attachment Factors for that Policy Month; or (2) the sum of the Minimum Attachment Point for each elapsed Policy Month.

For those policies with Run-Out coverage, for any month during the Run-Out Period, the Cumulative Attachment Limit is the sum of: (1) the Cumulative Attachment Limit for the last Policy Month prior to the termination date of this policy; plus (2) the Run-Out Period Attachment Point.

Cumulative Difference

The Cumulative Difference is equal to the Cumulative Actual Expense minus the Cumulative Attachment Limit at the end of each monthly period.

Effective Date

Effective Date means the date on which coverage begins under this agreement.

Expected Paid Claims

Expected Paid Claims means the projected claims at the time of the presale or renewal quote to be paid for all Covered Persons during the Policy Year.

High Risk Individual

High Risk Individual means a Covered Person whose claims under the Benefit Plan are expected to exceed the Individual Stop Loss Limit. For such person(s), a separate Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals is applicable, or such person may be excluded from coverage under this policy.

Incurred

Incurred means the date on which the supply is obtained or the service is rendered to a Covered Person under the Benefit Plan.

Individual Stop Loss Limit

Individual Stop Loss Limit means the specific dollar amount of Covered Expenses paid by the Policyholder for each Covered Person during each Policy Year, as set forth in the Schedule of Insurance. If coverage is terminated during any Policy Year, the Individual Stop Loss Limit will be the same as if the coverage had remained in effect for the entire Policy Year.

Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals

Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals means the specific dollar amount of Covered Expenses paid by the Policyholder for each High Risk Individual during each Policy Year, as set forth in the Schedule of Insurance. If coverage is terminated during any Policy Year,

the Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals will be the same as if the coverage had remained in effect for the entire Policy Year.

Individual Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable

Individual Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable means the percentage of Covered Expenses payable to the Policyholder once the Individual Stop Loss Limit has been reached.

Lagged Month

Lagged Month is defined on the Schedule of Insurance as either the same as the current Policy Month or as the Policy Month one or more months prior to the current Policy Month. In the event the Lagged Month refers to a month prior to the Effective Date of the policy, the Lagged Month is defined as the first Policy Month.

Minimum Attachment Exposure

Minimum Attachment Exposure is the greater of the number of Covered Persons enrolled during the Minimum Attachment Lagged Month in each product and plan design in the Benefit Plan; or the original estimated number of Covered Persons at the time of underwriting.

Minimum Attachment Lagged Month

Minimum Attachment Lagged Month is defined on the Schedule of Insurance as either the same as the Policy Year's first Policy Month or one or more months prior to the Policy Year's first Policy Month. In the event the Minimum Attachment Lagged Month refers to a month prior to the Effective Date of the policy, the Minimum Attachment Lagged Month is defined as the Policy Year's first Policy Month.

Minimum Attachment Percentage

The Minimum Attachment Percentage is used in computing the Minimum Attachment Point, and if applicable, the Minimum Run-Out Period Attachment Point. This percentage is shown on Schedule of Insurance.

Minimum Attachment Point

The Minimum Attachment Point is either not applicable (in which case it is assumed to have a value of zero in any calculation), or for each Policy Month and for each product and plan design, it is equal to the Minimum Attachment Percentage multiplied by the Minimum Attachment Exposure multiplied by Monthly Attachment Factors for the Policy Month.

Minimum Run-Out Period Attachment Point

The Minimum Run-Out Period Attachment Point is the Minimum Attachment Percentage multiplied by the Minimum Attachment Exposure multiplied by the sum of the Terminal Attachment Factors for each month as shown on the Schedule of Insurance under Terminal Attachment Factors.

Monthly Attachment Factor

Monthly Attachment Factor is a factor assigned to this policy to be used to calculate the Cumulative Attachment Limit and Minimum Attachment Point, as applicable. This factor is shown on the Schedule of Insurance.

Policy Month

Policy Month means a calendar month during a Policy Year.

Policy Quarter

Policy Quarter means a period of three consecutive calendar months during a Policy Year, with the first Policy Quarter beginning on the Effective Date of the policy.

Policy Year

Policy Year means the period beginning on the Effective Date of this policy (or most recent renewal date thereof) up to but not including the next Renewal Date or the date of termination, whichever period is shorter. The Policy Year is specified on the Schedule of Insurance and may differ by coverage as indicated on the Schedule of Insurance.

Recoverable Deficit

Recoverable Deficit for a Policy Year is equal to the amount reimbursable under the aggregate stop loss Coverage benefit provision capped at an amount equal to the Recoverable Deficit Percentage multiplied by the Cumulative Attachment Limit as of the end of the Policy Year. The Recoverable Deficit Percentage is shown on the Schedule of Insurance. However, if the policy ends on a date other than the Renewal Date, then the Recoverable Deficit from the prior Policy Year shall be deemed to have had a Recoverable Deficit Percentage of 100%.

Renewal Date

Renewal Date is the day on which a new Policy Year begins as specified on the Schedule of Insurance.

Run-Out Period

Run-Out Period is the length of time following the termination date of this policy during which claims that Become Due for a Covered Person under the Benefit Plan will accumulate toward stop loss coverage under this policy provided that they were Incurred prior to the termination date of this policy.

Run-Out Period Attachment Point

Run-Out Period Attachment Point is the greater of the Minimum Run-Out Period Attachment Point or the sum of each product in the Benefit Plan and each month (as shown on the Schedule of Insurance under Terminal Attachment Factors) of the Terminal Attachment Factor multiplied by the number of Covered Persons enrolled during the respective Lagged Month for that month.

Terminal Attachment Factor

Terminal Attachment Factor is a factor assigned to this policy to be used to calculate the Run-Out Period Attachment Point and the Minimum Run-Out Period Attachment Point. This factor is shown on the Schedule of Insurance.

Benefit Provisions

Individual Stop Loss Coverage

In consideration of payment of the Individual Stop Loss premium by the Policyholder, Cigna shall reimburse the Policyholder for the amount by which the total Covered Expenses for the Policy Year for a Covered Person exceed the Individual Stop Loss Limit. The amount of reimbursement will be calculated by multiplying the amount of Covered Expenses in excess of the Individual Stop Loss Limit times the Individual Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable, subject to Cigna's Maximum Liability specified on the Schedule of Insurance.

Reimbursement for Covered Expenses will be made after an Actual Claim Payment is made.

Cigna shall not be liable for any expenses that are Incurred or Become Due outside the term of this policy.

Other

If Cigna is not the Claim Administrator, payment for Covered Expenses will be made after receipt and acceptance by Cigna of such information and records as Cigna may reasonably require regarding the Actual Claim Payments.

In the event Cigna is the Claim Administrator paying claims out of the Policyholder's bank account established for the purpose of paying claims and such bank account is still open and available to Cigna, any payments or reimbursements under this benefit will be executed by Cigna debiting or crediting the Policyholder's bank account.

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage

In consideration of payment of the aggregate stop loss premium by the Policyholder, Cigna shall reimburse the Policyholder for Covered Expenses for the Policy Year that are in excess of the Actual Attachment Point. The amount of reimbursement will be calculated by multiplying the amount of Covered Expenses in excess of the Actual Attachment Point times the Aggregate Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable, subject to Cigna's Maximum Liability specified on the Schedule of Insurance.

In consideration of payment of the aggregate stop loss premium by the Policyholder, Cigna shall reimburse to or may require repayment from, the Policyholder after the end of each monthly period during the Policy Year for the amount of the aggregate stop loss benefit.

If there is an amount due to Cigna by the Policyholder, then Cigna may debit the Policyholder's account, or the Policyholder shall pay Cigna said amount within 30 days of receiving a written request therefore.

Covered Expenses paid by the Policyholder in excess of the Aggregate Stop Loss Limit are excluded prior to determining if the Actual Attachment Point is reached.

For the purpose of this calculation, amounts between the Aggregate Stop Loss Limit and the Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals are also excluded.

The above payments, reimbursements and credits made by Cigna to the Policyholder are subject to Cigna's Maximum Liability specified on the Schedule of Insurance.

Cigna shall not be liable for any expenses that are Incurred or Become Due outside the term of this policy.

Other

If Cigna is not the Claim Administrator, payment for Covered Expenses will be made after receipt and acceptance by Cigna of such information and records as Cigna may reasonably require regarding the Actual Claim Payments.

In the event Cigna is the Claim Administrator paying claims out of the Policyholder's bank account established for the purpose of paying claims and such bank account is still open and available to Cigna, any payments or reimbursements under this benefit will be executed by Cigna debiting or crediting the Policyholder's bank account.

Policyholder Duties

- A. The Policyholder will submit to Cigna a complete copy of the Benefit Plan unless Cigna already has such copy in its possession; such Benefit Plan or its complete copy is incorporated herein by reference.
- B. Cigna must approve a change in the Benefit Plan and/or the Claim Administrator if the change impacts the Covered Expenses or any other provision under this policy. The Policyholder must promptly furnish Cigna with a copy of each change in the Benefit Plan and/or Claim Administrator 60 days prior to its effective date. If such copy is not received, Cigna will only be liable for the reimbursement of Covered Expenses under this policy as if the Plan was not changed.
- C. If Cigna is not the Claim Administrator, the parties agree that the Policyholder or the Claim Administrator will have the following duties and obligations:
 - 1. to investigate, audit, calculate and pay all claims in accordance with the provisions of the Benefit Plan and any applicable provider contracts.
 - 2. to provide Cigna such information and records that Cigna may reasonably require for:
 - a. payment of any claim under this policy; and
 - b. projection of future expected claims of the Benefit Plan.
 - 3. to prepare and submit to Cigna on a monthly basis:
 - a. a report of the Actual Claim Payments paid pursuant to the Benefit Plan for that month:
 - b. a report of the total number of Covered Persons covered by the Benefit Plan for that month; and
 - c. a report listing claimants with Covered Expenses during the Policy Year greater than 50% of the Individual Stop Loss Limit. The listing is to include cumulative paid claims and the respective ICD codes.
 - 4. for individual stop loss, the preparation and submission to Cigna on a monthly basis, within 15 days of the previous month's end, of a report showing Covered Expenses during the month for those Covered Persons for whom the total Covered Expenses for the stop loss Policy Year meet or exceed 50% of the Individual Stop Loss Limit.
 - 5. for any and all Covered Persons whose Covered Expenses meet or exceed the Individual Stop Loss Limit during the Policy Year, the following information must be supplied for claim adjudication under this policy. This information must be presented to Cigna within 60 days of the end of the month in which the Covered Person exceeded the Individual Stop Loss Limit:
 - a. claim copies and all documentation relating to outside bill reviews/negotiations for hospital and provider bills greater than 50% of the Individual Stop Loss Limit;
 - b. copies of any and all documentation relating to the Benefit Plan's subrogation interests, if applicable;

CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

(Herein called Cigna)

- c. detailed claim reports and check information if explanation of benefits (EOBs) are not available;
- d. itemized bills for any claims or charges equal to or greater than 50% of the Individual Stop Loss Limit;
- e. an enrollment form or eligibility screen; and
- f. coordination of benefits (COB) information.
- D. The Policyholder will reimburse Cigna for any Actual Claim Payments subsequently repaid, refunded, rebated or owed to the Policyholder by any party.
- E. The Policyholder will furnish additional information or documentation as reasonably requested by Cigna.

Exclusions

Covered Expenses under this policy do not include the following:

- 1. Actual Claim Payments for which (a) there is other group insurance (including costs recoverable through the application of the coordination of benefits provision in the Benefit Plan); (b) third-party liability has been established; (c) there is coverage pursuant to any plan established by federal, state or local law (to the extent permitted); or (d) there is coverage under workers compensation insurance.
- 2. Expenses to the extent the Policyholder or Plan receives any payment(s), refund(s) or rebate(s), however denominated, or any reduction in charges including but not limited to reductions as a result of a PPO, EPO, or other managed care arrangement, claim reduction negotiation, or the application of any provider discount arrangement.
- 3. Expenses which Become Due after the date coverage under this policy ceases.
- 4. Administrative expenses of the Policyholder or Claim Administrator.
- 5. Extra contractual damages, expenses or reimbursements of any kind or nature.
- 6. Investigative or legal expenses including, but not limited to, attorney fees and court costs.
- 7. Expenses Incurred by a person not eligible under the terms of the Benefit Plan.
- 8. Expenses paid because of an amendment to the Benefit Plan which is not agreed to by Cigna, which agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 9. Unless indicated on the Schedule of Insurance, expenses for taxes, fees and surcharges that may be imposed on the Benefit Plan or Policyholder by federal, state or local governments.
- 10. Expenses Incurred as a result of war, whether declared or not, or acts of war or service in any military force of any country while such country is engaged in war, whether declared or not.
- 11. Expenses which are not considered Covered Expenses under the Benefit Plan.
- 12. Expenses for which the Policyholder or Claim Administrator has failed to provide the required information set forth under the Policyholder Duties section.
- 13. With respect to individual stop loss, and with respect to aggregate stop loss if indicated on the Schedule of Insurance, expenses resulting from fixed per person charges (fixed charges), if any (i.e. contractually determined periodic payments to certain providers based on the number of Plan participants entitled to receive services from the provider, in return for which, such providers furnish certain agreed-upon services to eligible plan participants).
- 14. For liabilities which are non-pecuniary in nature (not having a monetary value).

Omission, Concealment or Misrepresentation of Fact

The Policyholder understands that the completeness, inclusiveness and accuracy of all underwriting information provided to Cigna by the Policyholder was relied upon in the decision to issue and/or renew this policy. This includes any information volunteered by the Policyholder at initial quote or prior to a renewal, any information provided in response to a request by Cigna, and any personal health statements filled out by the Covered Persons. Cigna reserves the right to terminate this policy or re-underwrite this coverage and its terms (including but not limited to resetting the premium rates, Individual Stop Loss Limit, coverage maximums, Monthly Attachment Factors and/or the Minimum Attachment Point) if: 1) Cigna determines that any relevant information has been omitted and/or concealed; 2) Cigna determines that any fact(s) have been misrepresented, thus, impacting the assessment of the risk. Any such action by Cigna may be retroactive to the beginning of the Policy Year and will be reasonable in relation to the nature of the omission, concealment, or misrepresentation.

Subrogation and Acts of Third Parties

Applicability

Where allowed by law, this section will apply:

- 1. to Policyholders who receive payments for Covered Expenses under this policy; and
- where Actual Claim Payments have been made under the Benefit Plan to a Covered Person
 who has a lawful claim against, or who has received compensation, damages or other
 payment from another party or parties for expenses resulting in the payment by Cigna of such
 Covered Expenses; and
- 3. to the Policy Year in which the corresponding payment was made. The expense of subrogation will be shared proportional according to the Benefit Plan.

Policyholder Obligations

To secure the rights of Cigna under this section, the Policyholder must:

- 1. pursue the rights of subrogation contained in the Benefit Plan; and
- reimburse Cigna for Covered Expenses Incurred under this policy (but not more than the
 amount paid by the other party or parties) if payment from the other party or parties has been
 received by the Policyholder. The Policyholder must reimburse Cigna first, and in full, before
 retaining any benefit from the recovery; and
- assign to Cigna the Policyholder's subrogation and/or reimbursement right contained in the Benefit Plan to the extent of Cigna's payments if requested by Cigna and Policyholder shall cooperate fully and do all things as necessary and required to enable Cigna to pursue the recovery right.

Privacy of Information

In connection with the performance of its obligations under this policy, Cigna may disclose to and receive disclosure from the Policyholder or its Claim Administrator of information collected or received in connection with Covered Expenses reimbursable under this policy, provided the information is limited to that which is reasonable and necessary and in accordance with applicable law.

Under no circumstances will Cigna provide the Policyholder with information on Incurred, but not paid claims, projected claims, pre-certifications of coverage, case management notes, and course of treatment information or prognosis information.

Premiums

Premium Payments

The initial premium shall be due and payable on the Effective Date of this policy. Subsequent premiums shall be due on the first day of each calendar month that this policy remains in effect.

Premiums can be paid to Cigna's home office or to an authorized agent of Cigna. Each premium paid continues the policy in force until the date the next premium is due, except as set forth in the Grace Period section.

The total monthly premium is the sum of the premium for all Covered Persons for all coverages as identified on the Schedule of Insurance.

Grace Period

A period of 31 days following the premium due date, without interest, is allowed for paying any premium other than the first premium payment due. The policy will remain in force during the grace period, unless Cigna has been advised in writing that the policy is to cease prior to the end of the grace period. If any premium is not paid before the grace period ends, the policy will cease at the end of the grace period. When this policy ends, the Policyholder will be liable for all premiums past due and unpaid, including a pro-rata premium for any time this policy remains in force during the grace period.

Premium Refund

Any error or correction of any premium paid must be reported to Cigna promptly. The premium will be adjusted retroactively to reflect the correct premium amount. If a correction will result in a decrease in premium, a refund will be given only for the two month period prior to Cigna's receipt of a correction request.

Right to Change Terms of Coverage

Cigna reserves the right to change any of the terms shown on the Schedule of Insurance including but not limited to the Individual Stop Loss Limits, the Monthly Attachment Factors, the Terminal Attachment Factors, Minimum Attachment Point and/or premium rates under the following circumstances:

- 1. In the event the total number of Covered Persons at the beginning of the Policy Year or at any time during the Policy Year differs more than 10% from the original estimated enrollment, such change to become effective on the first day of any month following the fluctuation.
- 2. In the event enrollment in any covered Plan at the beginning of the Policy Year or at any time during the Policy Year differs more than 10% from the original estimated enrollment, such change to become effective on the first day of any month following the fluctuation.
- 3. In the event of material changes in the Benefit Plan or changes in legislation or regulation, Cigna may revise the premium rates with the revision to become effective on the date such changes are effective.
- 4. In the event of the addition of a subsidiary, operation or class of Covered Persons not previously covered under the Benefit Plan and approved by Cigna, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, Cigna may revise the premium rates with the revision to become effective on the date such addition is effective.
- 5. In the event of the termination of a subsidiary, operation or class of Covered Persons covered under this policy, Cigna may revise the premium rates with the revision to become effective on the date such termination is effective.
- 6. On any policy anniversary, subject to advance written notice of at least 31 days.
- 7. In the event of an omission, concealment or misrepresentation of material fact, as described in Omission, Concealment or Misrepresentation of Fact section, such change to become retroactively to the first day of the affected Policy Year.

If Cigna is not the Claim Administrator, Cigna also reserves the right to change any premium rates if Cigna determines that Actual Claim Payments are not being made in accordance with the provisions of the Benefit Plan. Such adjustment may be made retroactive to the beginning of the Policy Year.

Termination

This policy will continue in effect from its Effective Date until terminated on the earliest of the following:

- 1. At the end of the grace period if the premium is not paid.
- 2. Upon mutual consent by the parties, on the date the parties agree to terminate.
- 3. On the premium due date following 31 days after the mailing of written notification of termination by Cigna or the Policyholder.
- 4. On the date of termination of the Benefit Plan.
- 5. If any state or other jurisdiction enacts a law which prohibits the continuance of this policy, or the existing law is interpreted to so prohibit the continuance of this policy, as reasonably determined by Cigna, the policy shall terminate automatically as to such time or jurisdiction on the effective date of such law or interpretation.
- 6. Immediately upon written notice to the Policyholder of the discovery of the Policyholder's failure to comply with any material term of the policy.
- 7. Immediately upon written notice to the Policyholder if Cigna reasonably determines that the Policyholder has ceased or failed to sufficiently fund its account established to fund benefit payments under the Plan.

This policy may also be terminated by Cigna as follows:

- 1. Retroactively to the Policy Effective Date or the latest Renewal Date as applicable, upon written notice to the Policyholder, if Cigna determines that any of the information has omitted, concealed or misrepresented any fact which Cigna determines to have had a material effect on Cigna's assessment of the risk.
- 2. On the next premium due date, at Cigna's option, if Cigna determines that Actual Claim Payments are not being made in accordance with the provisions of the Benefit Plan, subject to advance written notice of at least 45 days.
- 3. On the effective date of a change in the Benefit Plan, that impacts Covered Expenses under this policy, which is not approved by Cigna, Cigna will give the Policyholder written notice within 31 days after receipt of a copy of such change, if the Policyholder notifies Cigna within sufficient time to allow compliance with this notice requirement.
- 4. On the effective date of any change in Claim Administrator, that impacts Covered Expenses or any other provision under this policy, which is not approved by Cigna. Cigna will give the Policyholder written notice within 31 days after receipt of notification of such change, if the Policyholder notifies Cigna within sufficient time to allow compliance with this notice requirement.

All coverage ceases upon termination of this policy. The termination of this policy does not excuse the Policyholder from forwarding to Cigna any and all premiums accrued through the date of termination.

If the policy includes Run-Out coverage, Cigna reserves the right not to provide Run-Out coverage in the event of termination prior to the end of the Policy Year.

CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

(Herein called Cigna)

General Provisions

Notice

This policy provides benefits when the Policyholder's Benefit Plan incurs expenses in excess of the individual and/or aggregate limits, whichever is applicable as outlined in this policy. Since this policy insures the Policyholder and not the individuals covered by the Policyholder's Benefit Plan, this policy neither adds to nor subtracts from the terms of the underlying Benefit Plan. Additionally, this policy does not in any way affect the Policyholder's responsibility to comply with employment laws such as the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act and other applicable state and federal laws.

Parties to the Policy and Responsibility for Claims for Benefits by Covered Persons

The parties to the policy are the Policyholder and Cigna. There are no third party beneficiaries and this policy does not create any rights or legal relation whatsoever between Cigna and a Covered Person under the Policyholder's Benefit Plan. Cigna's sole liability under this policy is to the Policyholder.

The Policyholder shall retain the exclusive obligation for any action, brought for benefits under the Policyholder's Benefit Plan however denominated, including any action purporting to be brought with respect to this policy. Policyholder agrees to assume the tender of any such action and to reimburse Cigna for reasonable costs, costs of whatever kind (including court costs and attorney fees) which Cigna may incur to protect its and Policyholder's rights until Policyholder accepts tender. Provided that nothing herein shall alter Cigna's obligations contained in the parties' administrative services agreement, if any.

Entire Contract

The parties agree that this policy and any endorsement and amendment to the policy constitute the entire contract regarding the stop loss insurance between the parties. Any endorsement or amendment changing this policy must be in writing and must be signed by authorized officers of Cigna and the Policyholder respectively. No person may modify or waive any of the terms of this policy except by a written amendment signed by a duly authorized officer of Cigna.

Enforceability

In the event that one or more provisions in this policy shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality or enforceability of the other provisions of this policy shall not be affected.

Clerical Error

A clerical error is defined as a mistake made in the policy that changes its meaning from what the parties originally intended, such as a typographical error or the unintentional addition or omission of a word, phrase or figure.

Upon learning of a clerical error in this policy, the policy will be revised and reissued by Cigna to correct the error and if premium or reimbursement is impacted, an adjustment will be made accordingly. A clerical error will not invalidate coverage otherwise validly in force or continue otherwise terminated coverage

Examination and Maintenance of Records

If Cigna is not the Claim Administrator:

- 1. The Policyholder will furnish to Cigna such data as may be required for the administration of this policy.
- 2. The Policyholder's and the Claim Administrator's books and records pertaining to the policy will be available to Cigna for inspection during the usual business hours. Such books and records will be maintained for a period of not less than 6 years following termination of the policy.
- 3. Cigna will have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records relating to Actual Claim Payments paid under the Benefit Plan whether maintained by the Policyholder or the Claim Administrator. Cigna will treat as confidential all such records and information obtained.

Dispute Resolution

It is understood and agreed that any dispute, controversy or question arising from or relating to the performance or interpretation of this policy, the breach thereof, or the subject matter thereof (controversy) shall be resolved exclusively pursuant to the following mandatory Dispute Resolution procedures, provided however that the Policyholder may not initiate any dispute resolution relating to a claim under this policy fewer than 60 calendar days or more than three years after due proof of such claim is furnished to Cigna:

- 1. Any controversy between the parties arising shall first be referred for executive review. The disputing party shall initiate executive review by giving the other party written notice of the controversy, and shall specifically request executive review of said controversy in such notice. Within 20 calendar days of any party's written request for executive review, the receiving party shall submit a written response. Both the notice and response shall include a statement of each party's position and a summary of the evidence and arguments supporting its position. Within 30 calendar days of any party's request for executive review, an executive level employee of each party shall be designated by the party to meet and confer with his/her counterpart to attempt to resolve the controversy.
- 2. In the event that a controversy has not been resolved within 35 calendar days of the request of executive review under Section 1 above, the disputing party shall initiate mediation by providing written notice to the other party, which shall be conducted in such location or locations determined by the mediator in accordance with the American Health Lawyers Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Service Rules of Procedure for Mediation. Each party shall assume its own costs and attorney fees, and the compensation and expenses of the mediator and any administrative fees or costs shall be borne equally by the parties.
- 3. In the event that a controversy has not been resolved within 60 calendar days of the request for mediation under Section 2 above, the controversy shall be settled exclusively by binding arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted in such location or locations determined by the arbitrator in accordance with the American Health Lawyers Association Alternative Dispute Resolution Service Rules of Procedure for Arbitration, and which to the extent of the subject matter of the arbitration, shall be binding not only on all parties to the agreement, but on any other entity controlled by, in control of or under common control with the party to the extent that such affiliate joins in the arbitration, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. Each party shall assume its own costs and attorney fees, and the compensation and expenses of the mediator and any administrative fees or costs shall be borne equally by the parties. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, conclusive and binding, and no action at law or in equity may be instituted by either party other than to enforce the award of the arbitrator.

This provision shall survive the termination of this policy.

Plan Changes

Cigna must approve a change in the Benefit Plan if the change impacts the Covered Expense under this policy. The Policyholder must promptly furnish Cigna with a copy of each change in the Benefit Plan prior to its effective date. If such copy is not received, Cigna will only be liable for the reimbursement of Covered Expenses under this policy as if the Plan was not changed.

Subcontracting

The work to be performed by Cigna under this policy may be performed wholly or in part through an authorized representative, subsidiary, affiliate, or parent of Cigna. Such subcontracting will not increase or diminish the rights or obligations of either party to this policy.

Assignment

Except as otherwise provided herein, assignment of this policy by the Policyholder will not be binding upon Cigna.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Policyholder may assign this policy, including all of its rights and obligations hereunder, to its affiliates or an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Policyholder, subject to notice and written consent by Cigna of the assignment. Cigna, in its discretion may reissue the policy in the name of the new assignee.

Offset

Cigna shall be entitled to offset payments due to the Policyholder under this policy against premiums due and unpaid by the Policyholder to Cigna.

Schedule of Insurance

Coverage Information

Policyholder: Hellebusch Tool & Die, Inc.

Policy Number: 00630572

Effective Date: October 01, 2020
Issue Date: October 02, 2020
Next Renewal Date: October 01, 2021

State or other Jurisdiction of Issue: Missouri

Notices

For the purpose of any notices required under this policy, such notices should be sent to the addresses shown below:

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Company 2000 S. Colorado Blvd Tower 3, Suite 1100 Denver, CO 80222

Hellebusch Tool & Die, Inc.

4 Southlink Drive

Washington , MO 63090

Individual Stop Loss Coverage

Policy Year: October 01, 2020 to September 30, 2021

Covered Expenses: Claims that are Incurred between October 01, 2020 and September 30,

2021 and that Become Due between October 01, 2020 and September 30,

2021

Run-Out Period: 15 Months

In the terminating year of the policy, the Become Due period is extended by the length of the Run-Out Period.

During the Run-Out Period, accumulation of claims toward the Individual Stop Loss Limit and the Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals shall reset to \$0 as of the anniversary of the most recent policy Effective Date. Covered Expenses for a Covered Person that Become Due during each new 12-month cycle will accumulate toward a new Individual Stop Loss Limit and Individual Stop Loss Limit for High Risk Individuals as applicable to such 12-month cycle.

HSA Plan

Monthly Premium Rates:

For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through September 30, 2021:

For covered employee without covered dependents \$ 163.88 For covered employee and covered spouse \$ 360.53

For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 319.40
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 467.05

OAP Plan

Monthly Premium Rates:

For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through September 30, 2021:

For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 128.57
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 282.72
For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 250.33
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 366.17

Individual Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable: 100%

Individual Stop Loss Limit: \$40,000.00

The following Covered Persons have been identified as High Risk Individuals and shall be subject to the Individual Stop Loss Limit as specified below:

High Risk Individuals None

Benefit Plans Covered by Individual Stop Loss Coverage:

<u>Claim Administrator</u>	Product	
Cigna	Medical	
Ciona	Pharmacy Expense	

Cigna's Maximum Liability per individual: Will be the individual maximum, if any, as set forth in the Benefit Plan less the Individual Stop Loss Limit

Additional exclusions from individual stop loss coverage under this policy:

Funds contributed by the Policyholder or an employee as part of a Health Reimbursement Account, Health Savings Account or Flexible Spending Account.

Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage

Policy Year: October 01, 2020 to September 30, 2021

Covered Expenses: Claims that are Incurred between October 01, 2020 and September 30,

2021 and that Become Due between October 01, 2020 and September 30,

2021

For purposes of aggregate stop loss, amounts attributable to claim base state surcharges, covered lives assessment and cost containment fees, as applicable, shall not be considered to be an excluded expense of the Policyholder or Claim Administrator and as such shall be considered Covered Expenses.

Run-Out Period: 15 Months

In the terminating year of the policy, the Become Due period is extended by the length of the Run-Out Period. Covered Expenses for a Covered Person will continue to accumulate towards the Actual Claim Payment or the Cumulative Actual Expense, whichever is applicable.

HSA Plan

Monthly	Premium	Rates:
---------	---------	--------

For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through September 30, 2021:	
For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 14.65
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 32.22
For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 28.54
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$41.74

OAP Plan

Monthly Premium Rates:

For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through September 30, 2021:	
For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 21.04
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 46.27
For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 40.97
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 59.93

Aggregate Stop Loss Benefit Percentage Payable: 100%

Aggregate Stop Loss Limit: \$40,000.00

Benefit Plans Covered by Aggregate Stop Loss Coverage:

Claim Administrator	<u>Product</u>
Cigna	Medical
Cigna	Pharmacy Expense

Cigna's Maximum Liability for the aggregate stop loss coverage: Unlimited for the Policy Year

Corridor Factor: 120%

Minimum Attachment Percentage: none

Minimum Attachment Lagged Month: none

Lagged Month:

Same as the current Policy Month, except the Lagged Month will be two months prior to the corresponding month for the purpose of determining Run-Out Period Attachment Point

HSA Plan

Monthly Attachment Factor (for each Covered Person):

For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through July 31, 2021:

For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 202.45
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 445.37

For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 394.55 \$ 576.95
For Policy Month Ending August 31, 2021 (or Two Months Prior to Termination if For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	earlier): \$ 101.22 \$ 222.68 \$ 197.27 \$ 288.47
For Policy Month Ending September 30, 2021 (or One Month Prior to Termination For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	if earlier): \$ 50.61 \$ 111.34 \$ 98.64 \$ 144.24
Terminal Attachment Factor (for each Covered Person): For Run-Out Month One: For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 101.23 \$ 222.69 \$ 197.28 \$ 288.48
For Run-Out Month Two: For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 151.84 \$ 334.03 \$ 295.91 \$ 432.71
OAP Plan Monthly Attachment Factor (for each Covered Person): For Policy Months October 01, 2020 through July 31, 2021: For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 316.05 \$ 694.99 \$ 615.35 \$ 900.11
For Policy Month Ending August 31, 2021 (or Two Months Prior to Termination if For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren) For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	earlier): \$ 158.02 \$ 347.49 \$ 307.67 \$ 450.05
For Policy Month Ending September 30, 2021 (or One Month Prior to Termination For covered employee without covered dependents For covered employee and covered spouse For covered employee and covered child(ren)	if earlier): \$79.01 \$173.75 \$153.84

For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 225.03
Terminal Attachment Factor (for each Covered Person):	
For Run-Out Month One:	
For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 158.03
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 347.50
For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 307.68
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 450.06
For Run-Out Month Two:	
For covered employee without covered dependents	\$ 237.04
For covered employee and covered spouse	\$ 521.24
For covered employee and covered child(ren)	\$ 461.51
For covered employee and covered spouse and covered child(ren)	\$ 675.08

Recoverable Deficit Percentage:

This Policy does not contain any Deficit Carryforward feature

Additional exclusions from aggregate stop loss coverage:

Funds, if any, contributed by the Policyholder or an employee as part of a Health Reimbursement Account, Health Savings Account or Flexible Spending Account.

Payment of premium is considered acceptance of this policy and the terms within.